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TOWN OF NORWELL 
 

Boardwalk Reconstruction 

BID #2025-01 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

April 25, 2025 

The attention of Bidders submitting proposals for the subject Contract is called to the following 

Addendum to the project Plans and Front End Documents.  The revisions set forth herein, whether of 

omission, addition or substitution, are to be included in and form a part of the Proposal submitted.  

BIDDERS MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM ON THE BID FORM.  

 

Notice to All Bidders. 

A. RESPONSES TO REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION (RFI’S) 

Item #1 – 

Summary of Question:  

Concerning the Town of Norwell Boardwalk Reconstruction, In The bid initiation 

this is listed as a requirement but when reviewing the plans and bid documents the 

bid.  The bid checklist on page 5 of 28 it isn’t listed. I just wanted to confirm if it’s a 

requirement. (MASSDOT Pre-Qualification Certification) 

Design Team Response:   

MASSDOT Pre-Qualification Certification is a requirement. 

Item #2 – 

Summary of Question:  

Can we request for a copy of the plan holder's list if there's any? 

Design Team Response:   

Copy of the plan holders list is attached. 

Item #3 – 

Summary of Question:  

And will addenda be sent automatically, or do I need to check back in? 

Design Team Response:   

The addenda will be distributed to all bidders and to the contact information listed 

on the plan holders list. 
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Item #4 – 

Summary of Question:  

Under the Site Preparation Bid Item, installation of erosion controls are listed in the 

description, however no erosion controls are shown on drawings to properly 

quantity for bidding purposes. Please provide drawings with erosion controls shown 

or provide quantity for equal bidding purposes. 

Design Team Response:   

Bidders should assume erosion controls the full-length on both sides of the 

boardwalk. Erosion controls required are shown on Details A and B on sheet G-101. 

Item #5 – 

Summary of Question:  

Is the bidder responsible for wetland delineation or will the town/engineer of record 

provide markout? 

Design Team Response:   

The successful bidder in connection with the engineer will meet with the 

Conservation Commission, prior to mobilization, to walk/ delineate the wetland 

areas. 

Item #6 – 

Summary of Question:  

PG 17 (18 of the PDF) of the spec, under #41 (Brand Reference) it states the Town to 

provide wood stock and fastening material, please advise. 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to Section C for revisions to the bid specifications. 

Item #7 – 

Summary of Question:  

Confirm the only helical piles required to be cut/modified are the three bents (C1-

C3) on Boardwalk C, or advise total number for bidders to include. 

Design Team Response:   

All bents may require modifications to the exposed height of the helical piles as the 

timber framing for the existing boardwalk, was different than the proposed timber 

framing (Refer to Sheet CD-501, Section C for typical removal limits). Refer to RFI 

Item #28 for requirements of contractor to develop proposed modifications to the 

helical foundations. Bents C1 to C3 are known to require modification to meet ADA 

guidelines. Additional areas may require adjustment based on the results of the 

Contractor Survey.  
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Item #8 – 

Summary of Question:  

Provide schedule of pipe required for helical pile pipe sleeve bracing shown on C-

502. 

Design Team Response:   

Pipe is Schedule 40 (i.e. Standard Pipe). 

Item #9 – 

Summary of Question:  

Are the steel pipes for the helical pile bracing required to be ASTM A252 Grade 3, 

ASTM A36 GR 36 or ASTM A-500 Grade B? 

Design Team Response:   

Per Specification 05 50 00 Metal Fabrications, “ALL STRUCTURAL STEEL PIPING 

SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A252, GRADE 3”. 

Item #10 – 

Summary of Question:  

Suppliers indicate IPE Deck Boards are not available in quantities/lengths to meet 

10/31/25 deadline, will town/engineer accept mixed species deck boards or 

spliced/butt joints utilizing IPE to meet completion date? Or will the town accept 

2026 decking install?   

Design Team Response:   

The Town is aware that supplier inventory is currently low for IPE timber products 

and there may be an insufficient supply of IPE products for the deck and guardrails 

once construction commences. If supply becomes insufficient during construction, 

the Town may be amendable to alternative equal products and/or extending the 

contract duration. This will be negotiated during construction and mutually agreed 

upon by the Town, Contractor, and Engineer. For bidding purposes, the Contractor 

shall assume mixed species deck boards will not be acceptable and the project 

duration is as specified in the contract documents. Butt joints will not be acceptable.  

Item #11 – 

Summary of Question:  

Has the project been through the Conservation Commission? If so, please provide 

the Order of Conditions. 

Design Team Response:   

Order of Conditions has been provided as an attachment to this addendum. 
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Item #12 – 

Summary of Question:  

Is bidder responsible for certified asbuilts? 

Design Team Response:   

Bidders are responsible for maintaining red line as-builts throughout the project. 

Upon Completion, final as-builts shall be provided in accordance with the 

specifications and requirements of the Town.  

Item #13 – 

Summary of Question:  

Drawing C-101 indicates Helical X-Bracing Typical of 28 Bents but the note -Helical 

Pile Grout-Filled Casing (TYP of 64)- indicates more than 28 bents receive bracing.  

Can you please provide qnty of bents? 

Design Team Response:   

All piles denoted with the casing symbol as shown C-101 shall have a grout-filled 

casing installed. All Bents denoted with cross bracing shall have cross bracing 

installed per section D/ C-301. Existing bents with battered helical piles do not 

require bracing.  

Item #14 – 

Summary of Question:  

Drawing C-103 indicates Helical X-Bracing Typical of 3 Bents but the note -Helical 

Pile Grout-Filled Casing (TYP of 10) -indicates more than 3 bents receive bracing.  

Can you please provide qnty of bents? 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #13. 

Item #15 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please confirm Decking material is 5/4 x 6 IPE. 

Design Team Response:   

Decking shall be 5/4 x 6 timber. Refer to RFI Item #10 for species information. 

Item #16 – 

Summary of Question:  

Do the Pile Cap brackets get mechanically fastened to the Helical?  If so, can you 

please provide a detail? 

Design Team Response:   
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Brackets are not mechanically fastened to the helical shaft. Bracket is a sleeve and 

bearing type connection. 

Item #17 – 

Summary of Question:  

How many bents will the helical piles need to be cut to meet ADA requirements? 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #28. 

Item #18 – 

Summary of Question:  

Will testing be required for the helical sleeve grout?   

Design Team Response:   

Testing the helical sleeve grout is not required. 

Item #19 – 

Summary of Question:  

Can you please provide the limits of erosion control? 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #4. 

Item #20 – 

Summary of Question:  

The design criteria on sheet G-002 provides specific load requirements of the 

structure.  Given that the new structure is being built on existing helical piles that 

were installed by others what are the responsibilities of the Contractor of this 

Contract if the new structure will not support the required loads? 

Design Team Response:   

The design criteria on Sheet G-002 are provided for records keeping only. There are 

no responsibilities of the Contractor to verify the capacity of the existing helical piles.  

Item #21 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please provide the methods that were used for removing the existing helical seats. 

Design Team Response:   

The helical seats are a sleeve type connection and slide on/off.  



 

 

 

 

Town of Norwell 

Boardwalk Reconstruction Addendum No. 1 Page 6 of 9 

Item #22 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please provide a detail for reattaching the helical seats that were removed by the 

Town back onto the modified helical pile shaft. 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #16. 

Item #23 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please advised what the details that entitled For Future Consideration Only – Not 

Used on sheet C-301 refer to.  

Design Team Response:   

Details are not applicable to this phase of work and should be ignored (For Town’s 

use only). See attachments. 

Item #24 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please confirm that all handrail is constructed with 5 – 2” x 4” rails as per the details 

on sheet C-503.  

Design Team Response:   

Confirmed. The horizontal rails are 2x4 SYP lumber. 

Item #25 – 

Summary of Question:  

Is the Contractor only responsible for lowering the existing helical anchor shafts in 

order to compensate for the change in the timber dimensions of the new design 

versus the original design or is the Contractor also responsible for ensuring the 

accuracy of the elevations of the originally installed system?  

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #28.  

Item #26 – 

Summary of Question:  

Helical Bracing Bid Item is inclusive of a quantity of 45 and is described as the 

following: All requirements specified on the Contract Drawings for the supply, 

furnish, and install all requiring steel casing, cross bracing bolting and grout fill, each 

pair of helicals (1 Bent). Bents requiring reinstallation of helical batter piles, without 

bracing, should be included in this bid item. How should this bid item be interpreted 

as there are varying quantities of casings and bracing , in excess of 45.  
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Design Team Response:   

Bid item is per bent requiring strengthening which includes two helical casings per 

bent and installation of bracing or batter pile reinstallation). Bid item is not per 

casing or brace.  

Item #27 – 

Summary of Question:  

On page the 8 of the Bid Specifications regarding the work that is included under 

this Contract it states: Maintenance and repair of all work for a period of one (1) 

year following the issuance of the Final Payment for each work area. This also 

includes repair of erosion for one (1) year after issuance of Final Payment for each 

work area.  Please advise as to the type of erosion that the Contractor will be 

responsible for. 

Design Team Response:   

Refer to C. REVISIONS TO BID SPECIFICATIONS. 

Item #28 – 

Summary of Question:  

Note # 14 on Sheet G-002 states: Contractor is responsible for survey of all helical 

shafts. Survey shall be submitted to the engineer for review and approval of ADA 

compliance as well as helicals requiring modifications.  Please provide more detailed 

information as to what is required within this scope of work. 

Design Team Response:   

Contractor shall provide a survey of the abutments and head of helical piles including 

the horizontal and vertical locations. Contractor shall use the survey to identify all 

modifications necessary to the existing helical foundations to construct the proposed 

boardwalk in accordance with ADA guidelines. Contractor shall submit proposed 

modifications to the engineer for review and approval prior to proceeding with 

construction.   

Item #29 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please clarify where timber curb is to be installed along the boardwalk per the 

section detail on sheet C-301. Boardwalk A, B, and C Reconstruction Plans (C-101 

thru C-103) specify guardrail to be installed on both sides on all 3 sections of 

boardwalk 

Design Team Response:   

There are no timber curbs along Boardwalks A, B, or C. Details are not applicable to 

this phase of work and should be ignored (For Town’s use only). See attachments. 
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Item #30 – 

Summary of Question:  

Please clarify what the measurements in inches provided in red on sheets C-101, C-

102, and C-103, is representative of 

Design Team Response:   

These are approximate measurements for Existing Height (Boardwalk Deck? to 

Grade) and are provided as reference only for demolished boardwalk. These should 

not be used for construction layout or as requirement for proposed grades. 

Item #31 – 

Summary of Question:  

Helical Bracing Bid Items includes Bents requiring reinstallation of helical batter 

piles. Scope of Contract/Project Description states the following: No new helicals 

piles are required nor proposed. 

Please clarify the bid item description and confirm if any new helical anchor 

installations are part of the scope of work.  

Design Team Response:   

No new helicals are included in the scope of work. Only the reinstallation of the 

bracket between the existing battered helical and new pile cap should be included. 

Item #32 – 

Summary of Question:  

A note on sheet C-101 states to Reinstall Helical Connection In-Kind Typical of 5. It is 

our understanding that every single existing helical pile will have to be modified/saw 

cut to accommodate the dimensions of proposed lumber, and reinstall seat brackets 

that The Town has previously removed and is currently in possession of, at every 

location. Please advise  

Design Team Response:   

Refer to RFI Item #28. The Town has possession of all helical pile brackets.  

 

 

 

B. INVITATION TO BIDDERS 

  

NO REVISIONS INCLUDED  

 

C. REVISIONS TO BID SPECIFICATIONS 

PAGE 2 OF 28 – TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DELETE – 41. BRAND REFERENCE 

INSERT – 41. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
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PAGE 2 OF 28 – TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INSERT – 55. APPENDIX B – ORDER OF CONDITIONS 

PAGE 5 OF 28 – 3. BID CHECKLIST 

  DELETE – REQUIRED FORM – ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT (FORM MUST BE SIGNED) 

  INSERT – MASSDOT PRE-QUALIFICATION CERTIFICATION  

PAGE 9 OF 28 – SCOPE OF CONTRACT/PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

DELETE – LANGUAGE FROM BULLET POINT 11 - “THIS ALSO INCLUDES REPAIR OF 

EROSION FOR ONE (1) YEAR AFTER ISSUANCE OF FINAL PAYMENT FOR EACH 

WORK AREA.” 

PAGE 17 OF 28 –  

DELETE – THE ENTIRE SECTION 41. BRAND REFERENCE AND ITS CONTENTS 

  INSERT – 41. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO ACHIEVE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF 

THE WORK WITHIN THE CONTRACT TIME PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER FOR 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IN THE AMOUNT OF SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY 

DOLLARS ($750.00) FOR EACH DAY THAT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION IS 

DELAYED BEYOND THE CONTRACT TIME AS ADJUSTED FOR TIME 

EXTENSIONS PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. SUCH 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES ARE INTENDED TO REPRESENT ESTIMATED 

ACTUAL DAMAGES AND ARE NOT INTENDED AS A PENALTY. 

 

E. ATTACHMENTS 

- 55. APPENDIX B – ORDER OF CONDITIONS 

- PLAN HOLDERS LIST 

- PRE-BID SIGN IN SHEET 

- SHEET C-301, SECTION B – BOARDWALK WITH VISUAL GUIDE RAIL (TYP) 

- SHEET C-301, SECTION – BOARDWALK WITH CURB (TYP) 

- SHEET C-503, DETAIL TIMBER CURB 

– END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 –  



Contract 2025-01 – Boardwalk Reconstruction
Town of Norwell, Massachusetts   

 

55. APPENDIX B - ORDER OF CONDITIONS
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